
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
   8 February 2017 

 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

Bursledon Windmill Joint Management Committee 
will meet on 

Tuesday, 14 February 2017 

beginning at 
10:30 am 

in 
16/17 Floor 1, Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillors A Broadhurst, Cross, Van Niekerk 
 County Councillors Grajewski, House and Kyrle 
 Mrs Sutton, Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust 
 Parish Councillors Mrs Andrewes and McCormick 
 Matt Blythe, Local Area Manager  
 Cerian Trevan, Chris Jones and Tim Kelly,Hampshire Cultural Trust  
   
  
Staff Contact: Amy Thorne, Democratic Services Officer  

Tel: 023 8068 8361 Email:amy.thorne@eastleigh.gov.uk  
   
 

RICHARD WARD 
Head of Legal and Democratic Services 

 
_____________________________________________________________________ 

 

AGENDA 

 
1. Apologies     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
3. Curator's Report    (Pages 7 - 14) 
 
4. Finance Report    (Pages 15 - 18) 
 
5. Venue Plan    (Pages 19 - 32) 
 
6. Joint Management Agreement     
 
7. Date and Venue of Next Meeting - 11 July 2017 11.30 am at Bursledon Windmill     
 
 

 

Eastleigh House 
 Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 
 

Wednesday, 30 November 2016  (11:45 am – 12:15 pm) 
 

PRESENT: 
 

Representing Eastleigh Borough Council - Councillors Van Niekerk 
(Chairman) and Cross 
 
Representing Hampshire County Council – Councillor House 
 
Representing Bursledon Parish Council – Councillor Mark McCormick  
 

 Mrs Sutton - Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust
 Cerian Trevan - Hampshire Cultural Trust 
 Matthew Blythe - Local Area Manager  

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Alan Broadhurst, 
Councillor Judith Grajewski, Councillor Diane Andrewes, Mr Jackson and Tim 
Kelly 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
 The Minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2016 were agreed as a correct 

record.  
 
2. CURATOR'S REPORT 
 
 Members considered the report of the Community Museum Manager,  

Cerian Trevan. She advised that herself and Jeff Witcher, the Visitor 
Services Assistant, started at the Windmill at the beginning of the summer 
providing much needed consistency in staffing. Jeff had an extensive 
background in customer service delivery and had been working on 
improving the visitor experience over the summer including the welcome to 
site and promotion of events.  
 
In line with improving visitor experience and facilities at the site a coffee 
machine was installed in July to allow the provision of hot drinks to visitors 
for the first time. To complement this a new range of soft drinks was also 
developed and proved popular over the summer. Work now needed to be 
done to establish how to install a hot water boiler so tea could also be 
offered. 
 
With the volunteer team having dwindled to one long-term interpretation 
volunteer and a garden volunteer a key focus for the summer had been to 
increase volunteer numbers. There was now a growing team of three new 
welcome/interpretation volunteers, one returning volunteer and two new mill 
assistant volunteers. Jeff had been interviewing and inducting the welcome 
volunteers over the last few months and there were at least two volunteers 
per day on site and they were all also keen to support events at site.  

1

Agenda Item 2



 

 

 
The increase in volunteers and new staff had meant that cleaning and 
maintenance was easier to keep on top of. The barn and visitor facilities 
were now cleaned regularly and were in much better condition. Gary had 
carried out a lot of maintenance around the site including grass cutting, 
hedge cutting, tidying  the front of the barn and pond clearance. He also 
found a local tree surgeon who was willing to give spare wood he had which 
would ensure the pizza ovens could be supplied.  The wood had also been 
used to create a rustic seating area by the beautiful lavender flowerbed in 
view of the pond.  
 
Work had also been progressing on the site maintenance plans related to 
the Tesco Bags of Help Grant. Bursledon was successful in securing a 
£10,000 grant for works to improve the external areas of site. Works would 
include extending the boardwalk around the exposed sides of the pond to 
improve safety and access, replacing the damaged fencing at the entrance 
and repairing other sections around the site, installing outside lights to the 
barn and creating another flower bed at the front of the barn.  
 
She advised that she had also been working with Gary and the H&S Advisor 
to develop a Safe Working Practice for climbing the sails which, amongst 
other things, would enable them to be re-painted.  
 
With a complete site team and two new mill volunteers a training and 
maintenance plan  was being developed to enable the windmill to start 
operating to full capacity again. Fosters Mill  had been contacted who 
provided training in 2014 and were able to do so again, it was hoped in time 
for November. Gerian had also been in touch with Ian Clark who would 
hopefully be able to provide maintenance The other key aim was to build up 
a team of people from within the Trust who were trained in emergency 
procedures such as turning the cap to provide support out of hours if high 
winds were experienced. 
 
Visitor numbers continued to be down on last year throughout the summer. 
This was disappointing, but likely a combination of a lack of permanent site 
staff for the early season, a lack of marketing as a result and the windmill 
not being fully operational. In addition a drop in numbers would be expected 
a year or two following a re-launch. With a full team now in place the aim 
was to address this for next year with an exciting programme of events and 
activities that was properly marketed and a regularly operational windmill.  
 
The following events had taken place this year and been well received; 
Special Sundays – Get Buzzy 10 July; Ways with Wood – 31 July; The 
Great Bursledon Bake Off – 17 August and Special Sundays – Windmill 
Making 18 September. 
 
For the rest of the autumn season two more Special Sunday events had 
been arranged – Pond Dipping and Craft with Corn plus a Woodland 
Shadows event during half term supported by SEARCH and Spooky Mill in 
November where there was the opportunity to tour the Mill by torchlight. 

2



 

 

 
Since the installation of the governor belt the conservators had been 
checking with the on-site team that it was working correctly. They had also 
been helping with contacting Ian Clark, a meeting had been arranged with 
him to discuss conducting a mill inspection and load testing on the sack 
hoist, but also the possibility of assistance with training. 
 
Schools finished for their summer holidays in mid-July so there had not 
been any facilitated school led visits during the months of July-August. 
 
The school workshop programme had been reviewed in time for the new 
academic year and would be focussing on top learning programmes: KS1: 
Little Red Hen & the Grain Chain and KS2: Flour Power. The learning 
resources for each workshop were currently being refreshed and were 
actively promoted  at the NQT conference in Winchester on 6 & 7 October. It 
was hoped that a revised HCT Schools Learning guide to replace the 2014 
version would be produced.  
 
Bursledon Windmill would be undergoing building work in November, so to 
avoid any clashes and tie in with the harvest festival bookings were  
facilitated in the early part of October.  
 
A very successful family event led by the Ashcroft Centre was run in July 
called Ways with Wood. This offered lots of child and adult craft activities to 
get involved with and many families chose to stay for the whole 
morning/afternoon going round and trying lots of the different crafts. 
 
The museum had become part of the local Dementia Action Alliance in 
Bursledon representing the heritage sector within the group which included 
local businesses and volunteer organisations. An on-going ambition of the 
Better Life Chances team was to develop a network of dementia friendly 
museums across the Trust by offering staff and volunteers Dementia 
Friends training. 
 
As with school groups the summer tends to be quieter than other times of 
the year with groups breaking up for the holidays. Staff were able to help 
one Scout group in September who had their original venue cancel on them 
at short notice so a session for 20 children was run at the mill instead and 
received excellent feedback. Two other groups have been in contact 
interested in sessions in the spring. 
 
A new edition of What’s On covering the period July – Sept and featuring 
Bursledon Windmill was delivered at the beginning of September. 12,500 
copies were printed and it was now in circulation via distributors, Brochure 
Connect, to TICs, libraries, museums, accommodation providers, 
educational establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. 
 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring exhibitions and events from 
Bursledon, had been to sign ups on a new database. There were now 
almost 3000 subscribers. Features such as Special Sundays and other 

3



 

 

summer events were promoted in the newsletter and on the website.  
 
Postcodes were now routinely collected from visitors on an ongoing basis. 
These were profiled annually using Mosaic software and provided ongoing 
information on which groups of people were using and not using services 
and how individual visitor profiles compared to the local area.  This fed into 
the service and marketing planning processes.  
  
Hampshire Cultural Trust’s Facebook page now had over 2800 “likes” and 
nearly 4,000 twitter followers. Events at Bursledon were promoted on both 
social media sites on an ongoing basis.  Those we have promoted during 
the period included the strawberry basket workshop, the special Sundays 
and the Bursledon Bake Off both on Social Media and the website.  
 
The Royal Blood website including a sign up area and What’s Ons for all 
upcoming events was now live. Although Bursledon Windmill did not have 
an exhibition as such, it was hoped that it would feature complementary 
activities and or events which could be promoted and shared. 
 
Press adverts had been  taken out, including a feature wrap and strip, (the 
Windmill should also receive some editorial support alongside this paid 
advertising space) in Schools Out, Primary Times, Defence of the Realm 
magazine and The View. 
 
For the first time this year the big theme had a media partnership with Wave 
FM. This included On Air mentions of events during round ups of what’s on 
locally (at least 3 mentions per week for each of our 4 featured events), 2 
features in e-shots to their customer database, a webpage on 
Wave105.com (over 330,000 visitors per week), and specific targeted 
messaging via their Social Media channels throughout the partnership. 
Representatives from all three local Parish Councils offered to put details of 
opening times and events on their websites in order to help improve visitor 
figures at the Windmill. Cerian agreed that she would put the marketing 
team in touch with the Parish Councils. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
3. FINANCE REPORT 
 
 Consideration was given to the Financial Report and Revenue Budget 

2015/16. Members were advised that there was nothing to add to the report 
and there had been no changes to the report since the last meeting. 
 
It was AGREED that the report be noted. 

 
4. DATE AND VENUE OF NEXT MEETING 
 
 The following dates were given for the Meetings taking place in 2017: 

 
14 February 2017 - 10:30 am – 16/17 First Floor, Eastleigh House; 

4



 

 

11 July 2017 – 11:30 am – Bursledon Windmill; 
14 November 2017 – 10:30 am – 16/17 First Floor, Eastleigh House. 

 
M5836 

5



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

  
  

  

Committee: BURSLEDON WINDMILL 
JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE 

Date of Meeting: 14 Feb 2017 

Title of Report: CURATOR’S REPORT 

Author: Cerian Trevan 

  
Purpose: 
  
 
  
 
 
1  Providing a Welcoming and Well Maintained Site 
 

1.1 Windmill Service Delivery 
 
The winter period at Bursledon is much quieter than other months due to the outdoor 
nature of the site and generally poorer weather at this time of year meaning visitors are 
less inclined to visit. However, we have run a number of smaller events that have been 
very well received and used the time to concentrate on maintenance tasks.  
 
The events this period started with our Pond Dipping Special Sunday in Oct which was led 
by the Curator of Natural Sciences. Children could borrow nets to see what they could find 
in our pond with lots of interesting discoveries made, and then in the barn they had the 
opportunity to make their own Water Beetle. For half-term the BLC put on a drop-in event 
on Weds for families called Woodland Shadows that allowed children to learn about the 
woodland creatures that might be found on site. 
 
In Nov the volunteers led a Craft with Corn Special Sunday showing visitors how to make 
their own corn creations. Unfortunately this was a very quiet weekend but one young 
couple went away with a number of corn designs, and the volunteers got busy and made 
lots of beautiful Christmas tree decorations which sold well in the shop. 
 

 
Figure 1: Volunteers making Christmas tree decorations - an excellent team building activity! 

At the end of Nov our final event of the season was Spooky Mill. We were blessed with a 

beautiful, clear and starry evening even if it was very chilly! The whole team really pulled 

together to get the site decorated for the event with the Curator of Natural Sciences 

Report on activities at or relating to Bursledon Windmill 
Covering period Oct – Dec 2016 

7

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

providing lots of animal specimens and bones, a number of the volunteers getting into 

costumes and the Miller and Visitor Assistant doing an amazing job of decking the mill and 

outside of the site in lights. While numbers to the actual event were disappointing those 

that did come stayed for longer than expected really enjoying the spooky tour, ghost 

stories and activities in the barn including a bone trail! Feedback was excellent and a 

number of people had seen our posts online about the event. We think running this event 

closer to Halloween next year would improve numbers as most people were already 

thinking about Christmas activities by the end of Nov.  

                               

    Figure 2: The Mill getting lit up                                                 Figure 3: Barn with spooky lighting and hidden animals 

 

     

Figures 4 & 5: Costumed characters in the Barn and Mill 

8



3 
 

Towards the end of this period we also had contractors on site completing the works taking 
place as a result of the Tesco Bags of Help Grant Scheme. The pond has had the 
boardwalk around it extended across the entire exposed section to improve safety and 
access to the pond for people with mobility issues. Sections of this fence are removable to 
allow people to access the pond for pond dipping activities, making this a much more 
flexible usable area.  
 

          
                                                                    Figures 6 & 7: New pond boardwalk 

 
These works also mended all the broken fencing on site, vastly improving the look of the 
site on entrance and allowed us to add another raised bed on site which we are looking 
forward to planting up in the spring to provide some colour to the front of the barn. 
 

     
                                                                Figures 8 & 9: New fencing and raised bed 

For the time when the site is closed we have developed a Winter Maintenance Plan and 
Windmill Training Plan. The priority when Mill Assistant volunteers are on site will be 
continuing their training, but at other times we have cut back all the hedges on site, given 
the mill a thorough deep clean and will be painting the office area, prepping the site for 
opening and installing new retail units in the shop area in Jan/Feb time. I have also been in 
touch with Eastleigh Men’s Shed and will be discussing with them how they might be able 

9



4 
 

to support us with some larger tasks on site including painting the inside of the mill and 
creating rodent proof storage.  
 

1.2 Visitor Figures 
 

Year April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Totals 

 
2011 – 
2012 

581 645 389 435 408 244 261 258 86 159 227 173 3866 

 
2012 – 
2013 

385 285 227 251 332 316 433 253 188 62 228 364 3314 

 
2013 – 
2014 

252 299 278 388 489 784 275 215 95 85 227 332 3719 

2014 – 
2015  

252 422 318 362 0 121 90 290 72 390 332 503 3152 

2015-
2016 

298 383 315 282 563 274 431 129 24 109 142 263 3213 

2016-
2017 

170 124 150 142 309 160 148 59 Closed Closed Closed   

 
In line with the rest of the year visitor numbers in Oct and Nov were down on last year. 
This is the first year we have trialled closing over the winter months (and increasing 
opening in the summer) so for Dec, Jan and Feb the site will be closed to the public with 
staff coming in on alternate Sundays to complete maintenance. A pre-season team 
briefing is planned for Feb and the site will re-open with a Cogs and Gears themed Special 
Sunday. Improved local marketing will aim to drive visitor numbers this year, we have 
already featured in Scene magazine with a feature on the first page and our events in their 
listings.  
 
2   Caring for Collections, Promoting Access, and Providing Specialist Knowledge 
and Advice 
 
2.1 Caring for collections  
 
Our Curator of Natural Sciences prepared over 30 suitably spooky specimens for the 
Spooky Mill Halloween Event, which she also attended. Visitors were encouraged to take 
part in activities to learn about nature’s autumnal creatures. Bats, rats, rooks, crows, owls, 
foxes and badgers were hidden around the barn waiting for visitors to discover them with 
the use of torches. Skulls of a cow, horse, badger, fox and pig were illuminated with 
battery-operated tea lights to add to the creepy effect and to challenge visitors to work out 
which skull was which! 
 
 

10



5 
 

 
 

 
 
3  Inspiring Learning and Community Engagement  

3.1  Formal Education Provision 
 

Visitor Figures 

 

147 pupils took part in museum led workshop programmes in October, which was our 

priority period for schools before Bursledon Windmill underwent building work. We also 

welcomed a home educators group to the site who brought a group of 16 young people, 

taking an overall total of visits to 163. 

 

Forward Planning  

A Short-eared Owl and a Long-eared Bat – 
two of the spooky animals which made an 
appearance at the ‘Spooky Mill’ 

11



6 
 

 

On the 6 & 7 October the BLC schools team attended the Primary NQT Teachers 

conference in Winchester, promoting the two learning programmes available at Bursledon 

Windmill. We are also in the process of recruiting casual Museum Learning Facilitators to 

ensure we have a satisfactory level of casual support to deliver on site at the windmill 

during March-November. Interviews will be taking place in due course and training will be 

on-going in the New Year.  

We have already received a numbers of enquiries for school workshops in March, and 
have a confirmed booking from Clatford School, who will be bringing a class of Year 4 
pupils for a ‘Flour Power’ session. 
 
3.2  Better Life Chances 
 
Families: The Better Life Chances team ran the Woodland Shadows event in half term for 
local families. There were lots of fun activities for children to get involved with including 
mask making, and lots of animal specimens to meet plus our woodland to explore! This 
event was supported by our long-serving volunteer Andrea who help prep the beautiful 
masks. 
 
Adults: The museum has become part of the local Dementia Action Alliance in Bursledon 
representing the heritage sector within the group which includes local businesses and 
volunteer organisations. An on-going ambition of the Better Life Chances team is to 
develop a network of dementia friendly museums across the Trust by offering staff and 
volunteers Dementia Friends training. 
 

 
 

. 
Out of hour’s bookings: Due to the time of year there have not been any out of hours 
bookings for the mill in Oct – Dec. However, we have received several enquiries for next 
Spring from Scout/Guiding groups and a couple from local history groups too. In addition 
we have had two wedding enquires as well. 
 
4    Marketing and Communications 
 
4.1 Print material 
 
A new edition of What’s On covering the period Oct – Dec and 
featuring Bursledon Windmill (Autumn Pond Dipping, Woodland 
Shadows, Craft with Corn and Spooky Mill) was delivered at the 
beginning of October. 12,500 copies were printed and it is now in 
circulation via our new distributors, Culture Calling, to TICs, 
libraries, museums, accommodation providers, educational 
establishments, attractions, arts centres, theatres etc. We did a 
review and decided to change distributors, so we hope to see an 

12



7 
 

uplift from this change and more leaflets out and about across the region. 
 
We also created a special “What’s On for Families” for the half term period which featured 
Half Term and Halloween activities. 10,000 of these were professionally distributed across 
the region, and this featured Spooky Mill at Bursledon and had a focus on hands on 
activities to be done at our venues. 
 
4.2 Online marketing 
 
The e-newsletter Museums Monthly, featuring exhibitions and events from Bursledon, has 
been sent to sign ups on a new database. Subscribers now number over 3500. We have 
promoted features such as the Craft with Corn and the Spooky Mill activity in the 
newsletter and on the website.  
 
4.3 Research 
 
Postcodes are now routinely collected from visitors at Bursledon on an ongoing basis. 
These are profiled annually using Mosaic software and provide ongoing information on 
which groups of people are using and not using our services and how individual visitor 
profiles compare to the local area.  This feeds into the service and marketing planning 
processes.  
  
4.4 Social Media 
 
HCT Facebook now has over 2900 “likes” and twitter nearly 4,500 followers. Events at 
Bursledon Windmill are promoted on both social media sites on an ongoing basis.  Those 
we have promoted during the period include Spooky Mill, Craft with Corn and Woodland 
Shadows both on Social Media and the website.  
 

Big Theme: Royal Blood 2016/Jane Austen 200 (2017) 

The Royal Blood website and project is now coming to a close.  
 
We are now working on the 2017 big theme Jane Austen, which will see supporting activity 
at those venues which will receive the exhibition. 
 
 
 

Cerian Trevan 
Jan 2017 

 
 
  
 

13



This page is intentionally left blank



BURSLEDON WINDMILL JOINT MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE  

14 FEBRUARY 2017 

FINANCIAL REPORT AND REVENUE BUDGET 2016/17 and 2017/18 

Introduction 

In accordance with the agreement between Hampshire County Council, Eastleigh Borough 

Council, the net cost of running Bursledon Windmill is shared between the partner 

authorities.   

This report provides an update on the budget for 2016/17 (Appendix 1) and asks the 

committee to recommend the proposed 2017/18 partner contributions (Appendix 3) and 

recommend in principle a further three years’ budget, consistent with the communications 

from E.B.C. on future contributions and note the contents of the financial update. 

Item 1, 2016/17 Budget. 

The 2016/17 budget for Bursledon Windmill provided in Appendix 1, column B reflects 

partner contributions as follows:  

1. Venue Management - salaries 
Includes venue management and curator salaries and on costs. 

2. Venue Management - costs 
This cost is an annual estimate of the total expenditure on rates, supplies and services 

and an estimated utilities and maintenance cost based on the average costs during 

11/12, 12/13 and 13/14.  Provided agreed usage figures are not exceeded, Hampshire 

County Council as landlord will continue to pay the utility bills.  Due to annual fluctuations 

in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be 

higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  

Hampshire County Council will continue to pick up any such overspend in years where 

more work needs to be done. 

3. Public Programmes (exhibitions) 
This contributes towards the cost of the Exhibitions team and includes display 

development, transport, setting up and taking down, cases for local exhibitions, 

maintenance of permanent exhibitions, insurance, marketing and research relating to 

new exhibitions. 

4. Collections  
This contributes to the care, curatorship and management of all collections relating to the 

museum, organised within the disciplines of Archaeology, The Arts, Natural Sciences 

and Social & Industrial History. The Service will continue to store, manage and provide 

public access to these important collections and make them available to the local 

community in support of exhibitions, displays and activities. 

 

 

15

Agenda Item 4



5. Better Life Chances 
The Better Life Chances team is responsible for the design, creation, marketing and 

delivery of participatory learning sessions for young people in school and family groups, 

as well as other collections learning activity in both informal and formal settings, both 

within the museum and beyond in to the community.  The team will place greater 

emphasis on work with hard to reach people in the specialism of Older People, Young 

People, Schools and Community. 

 

6. Business Development 
Business development provides strategic guidance and direction, monitors performance, 

levers funding from external sources including Arts Council England, and liaises closely 

with external stake holders and marketing functions form the bulk of this cost. Marketing 

functions include visitor research, targeted marketing campaigns, museum and What’s 

On leaflets, posters, website development, email marketing, advertising and media 

relations leading to free editorial and promotions. 

 
These headings reflect the headings in the previous 16/17 Venue Plans. Future finance 
reports submitted to the committee will reflect the new, 17/18 Venue Business plans, as 
referenced in the relevant agenda item. The aim is to improve understanding of where 
money is being spent and how Bursledon Windmill directly benefits. The budget has been 
modelled to include staff increments and a 1% pay award. They also include financial activity 
within the trading arm and projected income from gift aid (where applicable).  
 
Item 2, Proposed 2017/18 budget. 
 
The proposed 2017/18 budget for Bursledon Windmill set out in Appendix 1, column D and 
Appendix 3, column A2 reflects proposed partner contributions. 
 
It is proposed that the committee recommend in principle a further three years’ (2017/18, 

2018/19 and 2019/20) partner contributions consistent with the communications from E.B.C. 

and recommend that the constituent authorities are notified of their requested contribution. 

All recommendations made by the committee are subject to the normal budgeting processes 

of each contributor and will be reviewed annually as appropriate. 

 
 
 
 
Recommendations 

  It is recommended that the committee 

1) Notes the 2016/17 budget update. 
2) Recommends the confirmation of the proposal, consistent with the communication 

from E.B.C. of a further three years’ contributions. 
3) Recommends confirmation of the first year (2017/18) of those contributions for 

Bursledon Windmill. 
 

 
 

16



Appendix 1 

Bursledon Windmill JMC Budget 2016/17 and 2017/18 
   

 
A B C D 

Expenditure 

9 month 
Actual to Dec 
2016/17 

Budget 
2016/17 

2015/16 
FY Actuals 

Budget 
Estimate 
2017/18 

Venue Management -Salaries 20,935 27,030 25,750 27,650 

Venue Management -Costs 5,875 6,500 6,931 7,100 

Public Programmes 3,510 4,608 4,720 4,720 

Collections 8,033 11,355 12,045 12,045 

Better Life Chances 18,343 24,431 23,625 24,500 

Business Development 16,033       22,577  23,306 21,880 

Total Expenditure* 72,729 96,501 96,377 97,895 

Less Income 3,618 5,716 5,160 6,488 

Net Expenditure 69,111 90,785 91,217 91,407 

     

Appendix 2     

Eastleigh Museum JMC Budget 2016/17 and 2017/18 A B C D 

Expenditure 

9 month 
Actual to Dec 
2016/17 

Budget 
2016/17 

2015/16 
FY Actuals 

Budget 
Estimate 
2017/18 

Venue Management -Salaries 7,319 9,759 9,618 9,800 

Venue Management -Costs 12,455 18,061 17,605 15,000 

Public Programmes 12,975 18,433 20,061 20,000 

Collections 33,075 45,421 45,547 45,000 

Better Life Chances 18,523 24,431 24,625 22,000 

Business Development 17,024 22,577 22,306 
     

31,077  

Total Expenditure* 101,371 138,682 142,762 138,677 

Less Income 0 5,919 5,316 6,000 

Net Expenditure 101,371 132,763 134,446 132,677 

     

 A1 A2 Appendix 3  

Partner Contributions 
Budget 
2016/17 

Budget 
2017/18 

  Hampshire Cultural Trust/HCC 167,169 170,075 
  

EBC Eastleigh Museum 30,000 30,000 
  

EBC Bursledon Windmill 23,707 21,337   

BPC Bursledon Windmill 2,672 2,672 
  

Total Partner Contributions 223,548 224,084 
   

*This includes expenditure on rates, supplies and services and an estimated utilities and 

maintenance costs based on the average actual costs during 12/13, 13/14 and 14/15 (due to annual 

fluctuations in property and maintenance costs, some years the actual cost of maintenance will be 

17



higher as works need to be carried out and in other years the burden will be lighter.  HCT/HCC will 

continue to pick up any overspend in years when the work needs to be done. HCT also covers 

additional central overheads including finance, IT, HR & Marketing of £8,978 December YTD. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



 
 

 

  

BUSINESS PLAN 

BURSLEDON WINDMILL 

2017 - 2020 

19

Agenda Item 5

https://hampshireculturaltrust.org.uk/
https://hampshireculturaltrust.org.uk/


Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Vision goes here 

BURSLEDON 

WINDMILL 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Contents 

 

Venue Information............................................................................................................................. 3 

Performance / Projections .............................................................................................................. 4 

Strategic Opportunities .................................................................................................................... 5 

Customer Analysis............................................................................................................................. 6 

Risks / Threats ................................................................................................................................... 7 

Action Plan ........................................................................................................................................... 9 

Repairs & Maintenance Plan ......................................................................................................... 13 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

21



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Venue Information 

 

Access / Opening Pattern 

Open Sundays 10am – 4pm March – Nov and additionally Saturdays June – Aug. 

Group and school visits can be booked out of hours. 

Closed: Dec – Feb 

When the mill is fully functional again and if visitor numbers increase as forecast then it would be 

sensible to evaluate whether further opening would be feasible. In addition if flour production 

proves profitable it may be necessary to have staff and/or volunteers on site when closed to 

produce flour.  

  

Building owned by Hampshire Buildings Preservation Trust, leased to Hampshire 

County Council who lease to HCT.  

A small area of woodland next to the site is privately owned but managed by Fareham 

Borough Council and we have permission to use it. 

The access lane is shared with the other properties nearby but we managed the 

hedgerows either side (not sure who is responsible for the surface).  

 

 

 

 

Governance / Stakeholders 
Funded by HCC, Eastleigh BC and Bursledon PC 

Has JMC 

Other key partners – Hampshire Buildings Preservation Society, Hamble PC, Hound PC, 

Woodland owners, Bursledon Brickworks 

 

 

Staff 
Manager: Cerian Trevan 
VSA: Jeff Witcher (part-time) 
Museum Assistant/Miller: Gary Freeman (part-time) 
Volunteers: Current team numbers 6 including 3 welcome volunteers, 2 Mill Assistants and an 
Interpretation Volunteer. Volunteers generally work 9:30 – 4pm on days mill is open, at least 
once a month but often weekly. Mill Assistants may work when mill is closed for training or 
flour production purposes. Contact details can be found in Bursledon Windmill/Volunteers 
folder on the Volunteer Datasheet (password Gosling). 

22



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Performance / Projections 

  

23



 
 

Strategic Opportunities 

World Class Experience Better Life Chances 

Strengths Weaknesses Strengths Weaknesses 
Unique site within Hampshire, of 
regional interest 
Staff and Volunteers – customer service 
skills 
Potential for links with other sites – 
Eling Mill, Bursledon Brickworks 
Potential event offer 
Recent refurb of displays in barn and 
restoration work to Mill 

Need to grow volunteer team 
Mill not fully functional 
Not currently utilising social media 
effectively 

Out of Hours options for groups – 
schools, scouts, U3A etc.  
 
Support from local businesses – 
Tesco 
 
Growing team of older volunteers 

Staff availability to cover 
Mill not fully functional 
Facilities for school visits 
Mill operation is physically 
demanding – need to encourage 
younger volunteers 

Deliver a Surplus for Reinvestment Great Place to Work and Volunteer 

Strengths Weaknesses Strengths Weaknesses 
Potential for flour sales 
Improved drinks offer – needs 
expanding 
Potential event offer (tesco grant) 
Relations with key LA stakeholders 
improving – funding more secure, 
receiving more non-monetary support 

Declining visitor numbers 
Mill not fully functional 
Poor current retail offer 
Marketing plan needs developing 
and implementing 
Mill (and site) requires significant 
maintenance – staff time does not 
fully cover this 

Enthusiastic and very dedicated 
team 
Growing team of volunteers 

Only one person with significant 
knowledge of windmill operation 
Mill not fully functional 
Lack of staff availability/budget to 
manage activities/deliver 
volunteer training on site 
Need to grow volunteer team 
Welfare facilities for staff and 
volunteers 
Mill operation is physically 
demanding – need to encourage 
younger volunteers 

24



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Customer Analysis 

 

 

 

 

Customer Interests Current Offer Opportunities 

Families (child pleasers) Kids activities Special Sundays, some bigger summer 
events, outdoor space 

Event programme funded by Tesco – 
chance to gain feedback on what is 
desired by these customers 

Groups (culture seekers/child pleasers) History/educational activities Windmill tours, bespoke out of hours 
visits 

Flour milling demos, windmill operation 
demos 

Couples/Individuals (culture 
seekers/experience seekers) 

History, unique experiences Windmill tours Workshop activities/events in unique 
location, flour milling demos, windmill 
operation demos 

   Better engagement with Trip Advisor 
and Facebook – sharing customer 
comments with team 

   VSA gains feedback from customers 
during visit, encouraging visitors to 
share positive experiences online 

    

    

    

25



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Risks / Threats 

 

 1 2 3 4 5 

Likelihood: Rare Unlikely Possible Likely Almost certain 

Impact: 

 

 

Negligible 

 

Minor Moderate Major Catastrophic 

 

Risk score LxI:    1-7 Low 

1-7 Low 

8-14 Medium 15-25 High/Very high 

 

Key risk identified 

L
i
k
e
l
i
h

o
o

d
 

I
m

p
a
c
t
 

R
i
s
k
 
r
a
t
i
n

g
 

L
e
a
d

e
r
s
h

i
p

 

T
e
a
m

 

O
w

n
e
r
 

 

Controls currently in place 

 

Required control/action 

R
i
s
k
 
a
f
t
e
r
 

a
c
t
i
o

n
s
 

 

Last 

Review 

Date 

STRATEGIC RISKS 

1.  

Fire 

1 5 5  

 Fire detection system 

 Fire evacuation plan and 
emergency plan 

 Fire tests, checks and recording 

 Staff fire trained 

 Continued monitoring/testing of 
systems and equipment by alarm 
company and venue staff. 

 Continued fire training/awareness 

 

 

2.  

Security Breach/Theft 

2 4 8  

 Intruder alarm system 

 Good locking up procedures and 
key security 
 

 Maintenance/monitoring of alarm 
system by alarm company. 
 

 

 

3.  

Accidents/risks to staff/visitors 

3 5 15  

 Site specific risk assessments  

 Site specific processes and 
procedures including 
comprehensive operating manual 
for Windmill 

 Comprehensive Windmill training 
programme  

 Accident and incident reporting 
system 

 First aid kit maintained 
 

 Training in specific areas of H&S e.g. 
ladder training, working at height 
required for all staff 

 Completion of all milling related risk 
assessments 

 Continued training where appropriate 
and awareness of procedures in first aid 
and facilities management/health and 
safety to prevent issues arising.  

 

 

 

26



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE: Risk of fire will need to be reviewed once milling flour as risk will increase.  

4.  

Risk of violence/aggression to 
staff 1 4 4  

 Lone working risks assessment 

 Security and lone working 
processes  

 Review of lone working ongoing.  

 

5.  

Vehicle Management 

1 4 5  
 Car park management plan for 

large events 

  

 Exploration of off site alternative 
parking locations 

 
 

27



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Action Plan 

WORLD CLASS EXPERIENCE 

BUSINESS AREA / 
PROJECT 

ACTION MEASURE / KPI WHO WHEN 

10k Tesco grant  Works to improve site underway including fencing, flower bed 
and walkway round pond to improve access and safety plus 
presentation of site 

 Flower bed needs to be planted with shade loving shrubs and 
plants 

Works completed on site CT End of Feb 17 

5k tesco grant  Application submitted for funding for event programme next 
summer and brass rubbing trail 
 

Funding granted CT End of Feb 17 

17/18 event 
programme 

 Ashcroft/Bursledon combined events – theatre production, 
workshops 

 Trial of small scale exhibitions – Kim Whitby?, strawberry 
display 

 Tesco application – Summer Holiday events for kids/families 

 Site events – special Sundays and half-term events, Bake Off 

 Larger-scale re-launch event if applicable 

Event programme advertised 
in What’s On 

CT End of March 
17 

Added site attractions  Research options for beehives on site 

 Develop team to create and look after veg patch 

Viability of option assessed 
and either not taken forward 
or developed and planned for 
implementation on site 

CT Assessed by 
end of Sept 17 
with aim to 
implement 
viable options 
for 2018 season 

Mill Operation  Training plan in place 

 Need to secure funding for training 

 Increase volunteer numbers 

 Implement training plan  

 Implement regular maintenance programme – need budget 

 Updates and creation of risk assessments 

 Update Operation Manual 

Team and policies and 
procedures in place with 
Windmill operating regularly 

CT/CJ (Funding 
dependant) 
June 17 

28



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Visitor Journey  Directional signage around site needs improving to enable 
visitor to easily find way round site 

 Sign on gate needs updating to reflect current opening hours 

Signage in place CT  

Site Presentation  Develop cleaning schedules for both barn and mill 

 Develop weekly checklists for site (to include all H&S checks) 

 Investigate possibility of working with Eastleigh Men’s Shed to 
complete larger maintenance tasks on site e.g. painting inside 
of windmill 

Checklists/schedules in use 
daily/weekly 
Key maintenance tasks 
completed 

CT/site team End April 17 

BETTER LIFE CHANCES 

BUSINESS AREA / 
PROJECT 

ACTION MEASURE / KPI WHO WHEN 

Older People  Attend local Dementia Action group meetings 

 Arrange Dementia Awareness training for team (offered for 
free by above) 

Training completed CT Sept 17 

Community  Contact local Men’s Shed group to discuss mutually beneficial 
projects 

 Promote site more effectively to local groups (U3A, special 
interest, scouts/brownies) 

 Tesco grant event programme options 

Contact made with key groups 
– maintenance tasks 
completed, increased group 
bookings 

CT/site team End May 17 

Young People  Tesco grant event programme options 

 Contact local universities – volunteering opportunities for 
engineering students etc 

Event programme run 
Increasing in milling 
volunteers 

CT Summer 17 

Schools  Work with Rebecca P to build interest in schools programme 

 Follow up on Brickworks suggestion of linked sessions (they 
have facilities!!) 

Increased school visits CT/RP (Dependant on 
BLC priorities) 
in time for 
bookings in 
Sept 17 

DELIVER SURPLUS FOR REINVESTMENT / RESILIENCE 

BUSINESS AREA / 
PROJECT 

ACTION MEASURE / KPI WHO WHEN 

Declining visitor 
numbers 

 Develop and implement marketing plan, engage team in 
promotion 

 Work with other local/relevant sites for joint promotion e.g. 

Increased visitor numbers CT Summer 17 

29



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

brickworks/Eling Tide Mill/Winchester City Mill (Hampshire only 
place can visit all three types on mill 

 Event/exhibition programme (see above) 

Improve retail/catering 
offer 

 Re-design shop area using displays from Pop-Up, develop new 
product ranges 

 Promote catering offer and extend to packaged cakes/biscuits 

 Develop new design for tea towel (and associated products) 
with Gwyneth 

 Provide team with up selling and merchandising training 

 Set daily/weekly KPI targets, communicate to team, monitor 
closely and feedback to team 

Increased retail and catering 
SPH 

CT/CJ April 17 

Flour production and 
sale 

 Complete all Mill Operation tasks first 

 Visit Eling Tide Mill to share best practice on processes and 
procedures 

 Develop procedures, risk assessments etc to ensure site 
complies with regulations/legislation 

 Develop and implement additional training plan 

 Increase volunteer numbers 

 Register Mill as Food Business with HCC 

Mill registered as Food 
Business 

CT/CJ March 18 

Emergency Procedures  Ensure Disaster Plan is in place Disaster Plan up-to-date CT Sept 17 

GREAT PLACE TO WORK & VOLUNTEER 

BUSINESS AREA / 
PROJECT 

ACTION MEASURE / KPI WHO WHEN 

Increase volunteer 
numbers 

 Contact Tesco Community Liaison Officer 

 Review roles descriptions/ adverts and work with One 
Community to promote 

 Contact other volunteering organisations re promotion and use 
LA contacts to advertise 

Increased volunteer numbers CT Awaiting 
knowledge that 
we have 
funding for mill 
training before 
promoting 
further 

Training  Fully induct and begin training for two Mill Assistants 

 Continue Mill training for VSA and Manager 

 Start of season training session planned for whole team 

Training plan completed CT March 17 

30



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

 

  

 On-going training plan implemented 

 Key H&S training completed e.g. ladder training 

Appraisals  Conduct regular one-to-ones and appraisal meetings with team 
members 

 Conduct regular team meetings 

 
Appraisals completed 

CT Annually and 
on-going 

Volunteer recognition  Arrange regular team social events 

 Arrange regular training opportunities including special interest 

  

Events organised and 
delivered 

CT/site team Annually and 
on-going 

31



Bursledon Windmill 
BUSINESS PLAN 

2017/18 
 

Repairs & Maintenance Plan 

 

NOTE: Does not include routine maintenance inspections e.g. fire, security, pest control  

MONTH ACTION ESTIMATED COST 

April 
 

Full Mill inspection and stone clean 
Replacement of climbing gear over 5 years old 

£500 
£250 

May 
 

Sailcloth needs replacing 
PAT testing 
Fire extinguisher service 

Need to obtain quote (although Cllrs 
think we can get this donated) 
£250 

June 
 

Construction of pest proof grain and flour storage £500 

July 
 

  

August 
 

  

September 
 

Full Mill inspection £500 

October 
 

  

November 
 

  

December 
 

  

January 
 

  

February 
 

Painting – inside mill, sails and barn £400 

March 
 

Flower bed planting £50 

 TOTAL  

32


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	3 Curator's Report
	4 Finance Report
	5 Venue Plan

